\‘

Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Bal Sheet as at March 31, 2020

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 369.42 343.24
Capital work-in-progress 4 14.39 1.85
Intangible assets - 5 170.14 196,92
Right of use assets 6 693.61 -
Financial assets
Loans T 162.09 13437
Other financial assets 8 3.78 11.24
Income tax assets (net) 36.19 29.19
Deferred tax assets (net) 17 5591 21.64
Other non-current assets 9 21.04 63,14
Total non-current assets 1,526.57 B01.59
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,546.03 1,230.43
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 1,106.16 1,195.18
Cash and cash equivalent 12 3.47 20.40
Other bank balances 13 - 1.16
Others financial assets 8 73.29 32.65
Other current assets 9 406.41 363.20
Total current assets _3,135.36 2,843.02
Total assets 4!661.93 3 61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 298.95 298.95
Other equity 15 1,085.53 1,156.61
Total equity 1,384.48 1,455.56
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 6 626.36 -
Provisions 16 - 1.60
Total non-current liabilities 626,36 1.60
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 1,391.58 1,242.95
Trade payables 19
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises = B
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 14508 it
Security deposits from customers 20 11.34 7.70
Lease liability 6 209.18 -
Other financial liabilines 21 327 6921
Provisions 16 22.76 27.97
Current tax liability (net) 949 22.62
Other current habilities 22 144.93 157.51
Total current liabilities 2,651.09 2,187.45
Total liabilities 3,277.45 2,189.05
Tatal equity and liabilities 4,661.93 3!644.61
Summary of significant ing poli 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 23 434357 4205.08
Other income b 24 18.36 9.66
Finance income 25 14.13 13 46
Total income 4,376.06 4,228.20
Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 26 242272 2,271.90
Increase in inventories of traded goods and right of retum assets 27 (313.66) (274.89)
Employee benefits expense 28 237.95 196.84
Other expenses 29 1,402.25 1,647.70
Total expenses 3,749.26 3,841.55
Profit before interest, depreciation/ amortisation and taxes (PBIDT) 626.80 386.65
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 373.57 141.17
Finance costs 31 226.69 110,08
Profit before tax 26.54 135.40
Income tax expense
Current tax 17 31.91 77.28
Deferred tax 17 (8.65) (28.69)
Total tax expense 23.26 48,59
Profit for the year 3.28 86.81
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Re-measurement gains/ (loss) of defined benefit plans 5.49 0.51

Income tax effect on above ' 17 (1.41) (0.18)
Net other comprehensive income/ (loss) that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 4.08 033
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve 40.70 (21.07)

Income tax effect on above 17 (10.43) 7.36
Net other comprehensive loss that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 30.27 (13.71)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 3435 (13.38)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 37.63 73.43
Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 10 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 10)] ki

Basic and diluted [in Rs. per share] 011 2.90
Summary of significant accounting policies B

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Stat t of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity share capital (refer note 14)

Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid:

As at April 1, 2018
Issue of equity share capital
As at March 31, 2019
Issue of equity share capital
As at March 31, 2020

B. Other equity (refer note 15)

Balance as at April 1, 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Balance as at March 31, 2019

Profit for the year

Impact on aceount of adoption of Ind AS 116

Tax impact on leases implementation

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Balance as at March 31, 2020

No. of shares Rs. million

29,894318 298.95

29,894 318 208.95

29,894,318 298.95

(Rs. million)

Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income
Securities premium Retained earnings Cash flow hedge Total equity
reserve

643.02 440.16 - 1,083.18
- 86.81 - 86.81
- 0.33 (13.71) (13.38)
643.02 527.30 (13.71) 1,156.61

- 328 - 328
(146.17) (146.17)

3746 37.46

L 4.08 3027 3435
643.02 425.95 16,56 1,085.53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Tunmy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

A Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Finance income

Finance costs

Finance costs - Lease liability

Depreciation on right of use asseis

Net foreign exchange gain

Property,plant and equipment written-off’

Net loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain on reassessment of lease
Rent expense (Ind AS adjustment)

Waorking capital adjustments:
Increase in inventories
Increase in loans
Decrease/ (increase) in trade recervable
Decrease/ (increase) other bank balances
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other assets
Inerease in trade payables
Increase in security deposit from customers
Increase in other financial liabilities
1 (d )in pr
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities

Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest recerved (finance income)
Net cash Mows used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Payment for leases
Interest paid

Net cash Mlow from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C|

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of (refer note 12):

Balances with bank in current accounts
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

Notes:

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Rs. million Rs. million
26.54 135.40
30 110.71 11348
30 2788 2769
25 (14.13) {13.46)
125.13 93,90
86,73 -
6 234 98 E
(4.16) (1.26)
29 110 5.04
29,24 (2.88) 146
(10.33) -
- 846
(315.61) (231.79)
(16.13) (26.24)
89,02 (205.46)
116 (0.06)
(6.:61) (9:20)
(38.14) (112.16)
12043 119.26
364 476
2035 694
(1.31) 309
(12.54) 10414
425.83 23.99
(52.04) (42.39)
373,79 (18.40)
21.40 014
(153.80) (130.68)
25 316 583
(129.24) {124.71)
148.62 246,95
(285.91) =
(124.19) (92.56)
(261,48) 154.39
(16.93) 11.28
12 2040 912
2 347 20,40
339 13.07
0.08 733
3.47 20,40

a The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

b Additions to property, plant and equif include

Brmiik 1

of capital work-in-progress, capital advances and capital creditors.

8 ry of sigs 8 p

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Notes to the fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2020
Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

(Rs. million)
Cost Plant and Data processing Office Furniture and Leasehold Vehicles Total

iy Juif juip impr

As at April 1, 2018 0.35 14.34 2.7 4.28 423.28 6.37 458.41
Additions - 6.15 6.73 209 117.49 - 132.46
Disposals/ deletions - (0.02) (0.01) (1.67) (17.39) - (19.09)
As at March 31, 2019 035 20.47 16.51 4.70 523.38 637 571.78
Additions - 8.40 659 632 134.19 1.02 156.52
Disposals’ deletions - (0.32) (0.43) - (43.05) (2.45) {46.25)
As at March 31, 2020 035 28.55 22.67 11.02 614.52 4.94 682.05
Depreciation and impairment
As at April 1,2018 0.09 831 5.86 1.90 106.93 442 127.51
Depreciation for the year 0.03 427 4.03 0.84 103.41 0.90 113.48
Disposals/ deletions - - (0.01) (0.70) (11.74) = (12.45)
As at March 31, 2019 0.12 12.58 9.88 2.04 198.60 532 228.54
Depreciation for the year 0.03 5.60 4.20 LIS 98.80 0.90 110.71
Disposals/ deletions - (0.26) (0.20) - (23.71) (2.45) (26.62)
As at March 31, 2020 0.15 17.92 13.88 322 273.69 3.77 312.63
Net book value
As at March 31, 2019 0.23 7.89 6.63 2.66 324.78 1.05 343.24
As at March 31, 2020 0.20 10.63 8.79 7.80 340.83 1.17 369.42
Note: Also refer to note 36 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equip
Note 4: Capital work-in-progress (Rs, million)
As at March 31,2019 1.85
As at March 31, 2020 14.39
Note: Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of pending capitalization of leasehold imp for office premises and stores under construction.
Note 5: Intangible assets

(Rs. million)
Cost Trademark Computer Total

license fee Software

As at April 1,2018 297.55 7.25 304.80
Additions - 234 234
Disposals/ deletions - = =
As at March 31,2019 297.55 9.59 307.14
Addinons - L1 1.11
Disposals/ deletions - - -
As at March 31, 2020 297.55 10.70 308.25
Amortisation and impairment
As at April 1,2018 T8.14 4.39 82.53
Amortisabon for the year 26.02 1.67 2769
Disposals/ deletions - - -
As at March 31, 2019 104.16 606 110.22
Amortisation for the year 26,10 1.79 2789
Disposals’ deletions - = =
As at March 31, 2020 130.26 71.85 135.11
Net book value
As at March 31, 2019 193.39 3.53 196,92
As at March 31, 2020 167.29 2.85 170.14

Notes:

On September 7, 201 1. the Company has entered into a License Agreement with Tommy Hilfiger Europe BV and obtained an exclusive and assignable license 10 use the Trademark
Tommy Hilfiger, i connection with the manufacture, import, distribution, promotion, advertising and sale of Tommy Hilfiger products i India for a consideration of Rs 377.9%
milhon (LS 7.5 million), which has been capitalised as an gible asset, 1n accordance with Ind AS 38, "Intangible Assets” The ownership of aforesaid Trademark rests with
Tommy Hilfiger Furope BV

Linder the aforesmd agreement, the Company must achieve certam minimum sales level with respect to the licensed products and pay rovalty on ligher of the actual and minimum
sales value of hicense products. As at March 31, 2020 Rs. 349 51 million (March 31, 2019: Rs. 490.39 million) is the total minimum royalty to be paid under this agreement over the
halance penod of the term. The Company is required to spend 1% of net sales on advertising the license products and trademarks on an annual basis As per the agreements entereid
by the Company with sub-franchisees, certain minimum sales level with respect to the licensed products must be achieved by the sub-franchisees and royalty is earned on the higher
of the actual and minimum sales value of the licensed products

The umial term of hicense 1s for a period of 10 years However, the same can be renewed for a further peniod of 5 years without any additional consideration, subject to compliance
with certmn terms and condinons under the afi 1 agr Manag has d d that it is virtually certain that the Company would reriew the license agreement for a
turther peniod of 5 years. Accordingly, the Company has amortised the trademark over a period of 15 years

P




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Notes

to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

o

Note 6 : Leases

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months
from the date of transition by class of asset and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The
Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as
operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial
application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial
application as an alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right of use asset
at the date of initial application and used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. The right-of-
use asset is recognised at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement of the lease, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of
9% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the
right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

The difference between the future minimum lease rental commitments towards non-cancellable operating leases reported as at March
31, 2019 compared to the lease liability as accounted as at April 1, 2019 is primarily due to inclusion of present value of the lease
payments for the cancellable term of the leases, reduction due to discounting of the lease liabilities as per the requirement of Ind AS
116 and exclusion of the commitments for the leases to which the Company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as per the
standard.

The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as per para C8 (C) (i) of IND-AS 116, Leases to its leases effective from
accounting period beginning from April 01, 2019 and recognised Right of Use assets and Lease Liability as on April 01, 2019 and
difference between Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability, net of deferred tax Rs. 108.71 million (Deferred Tax Rs. 37.46 million)
has been adjusted in retained earnings.

The Company has taken Showrooms and other facilities on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal.
Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (Showrooms) { Rs. million )
Particulars
March 31, 2020
Recognition of ROU Asset on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 923.78
Regrouping on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 2953
Additions 888
Deletions (33.60)
Depreciation (234 .98)
Balance at the end of the year 693.61
S——
Movement in lease liabilities
Particulars
March 31, 2020
Recogniton of ROU Asset on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 1,069 95
Addinons 870
Deletions (43.93)
Finance cost accrued during the year 86.73
Payment of lease labilities (285.91)
Balance at the end of the year 835.54
Current 209.18
626.36

Non-current

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities

Particulars
. March 31, 2020
Less than one yvear 21197
One to five years 54423
Muore than five years 7934
835.54

Total

The Company does not face a significant hquidity risk with regard 1o its lease liabilities as the current assets

are sufficient 1o meet the obligations related to lease habilities as and when they fall due

I'he Company incurred Rs. 10.40 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 towards expenses relating to

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Notes to the financial for the year ended March 31, 2020
Note 7: Loans
Non-current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 162.09 13437
162.09 13437
Note 8: Other fi inl nssets ( ed, idered good)
Non-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million Rs, million Rs. million
Carried at amortised cost:
Other bank balance (refer note 13) 78 11.24 - -
Accrued interest on bank deposits - - 032 094
Employee advances - - 537 4.51
Unbilled revenue - - 442 544
Other receivable from related party (refer note 37) = - 3599 2176
3.78 11.24 46.10 32.65
Note: No other receivables are due from directors of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Carried at fair value:
Deenvative instruments - - 27.19 -
3.78 11.24 73.29 31.65
Note 9: Other assets
Non-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 310 10.44 - -
Prepaid expenses - 25.08 1229 1195
Advances to suppliers - - 67.83 5548
Balances with statutory/ government authorities 1754 20,97 25548 244 56
Right of return assets e . 4116 4310
Prepard gratuity - - 214 -
Other advances - 6.65 2751 811
21.04 63.14 406,41 363.20
Ust ol idered doubtfal
Capital advances 248 248 - .
23.52 65.62 406.41 363.20
Pro for doubtful ad _(248) (248) + -
21.04 63.14 406.41 363.20
Note 10: Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Traded goods including stock-in-transit of Rs.163.23 mullion (March 31, 2019 Rs 74 39 million) 1,546 03 1,23043
1,546.03 1,230.43

Note During the year ended March 31, 2020: Rs. 97.93 mullion (March 31, 2019 Rs 48 13 million) was recognised as an expense for inventories carned at pet realisable value

Note 11: Trade receivables

Trade recervables
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 37)

Bresk-up for security details:

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Allewance for doubtful trade receivables

Notes:

a No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jomtly with any other person

b For related party disclosures, refer note 37

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Rs. million Rs. million
1,096 29 1,19493
987 025
110616 1,195.18

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Rs. million Rs. million
1,106 15 1,195.18
500 5.00
1,11115 1,200.18
(5 00) (5.00)
1.106.15 1,195.18

¢ Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment/ credi tenure of 30 10 180 days (March 31, 2019 30 to 180 days)




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Notes to the fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 12: Cash and cash equivalent

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Balances with bank - eurrent accounts 139 13.07
Cash on hand 008 733
3.47 2040
Note 13: Other bank balances
Non-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months - - - 116
Other deposits [refer note (a) below] 378 11.24 - -
3.78 11.24 - 116
Amount disclosed under “Other financial assets” (refer note 8) (3.78) (11.24) - -
- - - 1.16
Notes:
a Other deposits includes deposits placed as bank guarantee (o sales tax department of various states.
Break-up of financial assels carried at amortised cost:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Loans (note 7) 162.09 134.37
Others financial assets (note 8) 49 B8 43 89
Trade recervables (note 1) 1,106.15 1,195.18
Cash and cash equivalents (note 12) 347 2040
Orher bank balances (note 13) - 116
1,321.59 1,395.00
—
Break-up of financial assets carried at fair value:
Others financial assets (note 8) 27.19 -
17.1% -

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

Naotes to the financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 14: Equity share capital

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 30,000,000 300.00 30,000,000 300.00

30,000,000 300.00 30,000,000 300.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 29,894 318 298.95 29,894 318 298.95
Shares issued during the year - - - -

29.8 18 298.95 29&9«1&18 298.95

14.1. Terms/ rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity

shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholder.

14.2. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of shares Rs, million No. of shares Rs. million
At the beginning of the period 29,894 318 298.95 29,894 318 298.95
Add: Issue of shares during the year - - = -
Outstanding at the end of the period I s AT et IAL .  ——R I,
14.3. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of shares % of shareholding No. of shares % of shareho
Arvind Fashions Limited (Joint venture partner) 14,947,159 50% 14,947,159 50%
PVH BV (Joint venture partner) 14,947,159 50% 14,947,159 50%
Note 15: Other equity
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Securities premium:
Balance as per last financial statements 643.02 643.02
Changes during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 643.02 643.02

Note: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

Retained earnings:
Balance as per last financial statements 52730 440.16
Less: Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (146.17) -
Less: Tax impact on leases implementation 37.46
Add: Profit for the year 328 R6.81
Less: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 4.08 0.33
Balance at the end of the year 425.95 527.30
Items of other comprehensive income:
Balance as per last financial statements (13.71) -
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve 4070 (21.0M)
Less' Tax impact on additions (10.43) 7.36
Balance at the end of the year 16.56 (13.71)

Note: The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk. For hedging foreign currency nisk, the Company uses foreign currency
forward contracts. To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts
recognised mn the cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified 1o the statement of profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss

Total other equity 1,085.53 1,156.61




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 16: Provisions

Non-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 Murch 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 35)

Provision foor leave encashment - . 5.26 881

Provision for gratuity - 1 60 - | 66
Provision for litgation/ dispute (refer note below) - & 17.50 17.530

- —iw e 1297
Note: Provi for li dispute rep P made in respect of claims against the Company for ongoing tax disputes.
Movement in provisions for litigation! dispute
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Rs. million Ry, million
At the begmning of the penod 17.50 15.00
Provision recognised during the year - 250
Amount utilised/ reversed duning the year - -
Balnnce as at end of the period 17.50 17.50
Note 17: Income tax
A. The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 20019
Rs, million Rs. million
Statement of Profit and Loss
a) Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 3191 7718
b} Deferred tax:

Relating to ongination and reversal of temporary differences (8.05) (28.69)
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 23.26 48.59
¢) OCT section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Nt loss! (gain) on re-measurement of defined benefit plans (1.41) (0.18)
Net loss on revaluation of cash flow hedge reserve (10.43) 736
Income tax charged to OC1 (11.84) .18
B. Reconcilistion of tax and the ing profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:
The Company has exercised the option 10 pay meome nx at the rate of 22% (plus applicable surchange and cess), as per Section 1 15BAA of the Income
Tax Act, 1962, as it has comphed with eligibility crtera.

Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2009

Rs. million Rs. million

Accounting profit before tax 26.54 13540
At India’s stanutory income tax rate of 25.625% (March 31, 2019: 34 944%) 6 B0 4711
Dreductibl fisallowed in earlier years for tax purpose:
Depreciation (net of books and tax) 046 {1 9%)
Disallowance! (allowance) w's 438 538
Other disallowances 623 276
T mute difforence 202 -
Non-geductible expenses for tax purposes:
Corporate social responsibility 021 030
Ind AS adpstment 216 017
At the effective income tax rate of 87.64% (March 31, 2019: 35.89%) 23.26 4859

C. Deferred tax relates to the following:

Statement of Profit and Loss and Other

Bal. Sheet ined Enrnings Comprehensive Income
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2019 Muarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs, million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
Accolrated dep for @ purp 1478 1.04) 115 82) (26.35)
Provisson for doubtful debt 128 125 047 (0.02)
E d llowable on pay basts 1311 12.16 (0.95) 602
Revalnation of cash flow hedges (6.79) 761 14.40 (14.79)
Impact of Ind AS 116 - Loases 3638 - (37 46) 1 08 -
Expenses disallowed w's 400 (2.85) 116 4.01 (0.53)
Deferred tax expense/ (incomel (37.46) 3,19 (35.87)
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 5591 21.64
1. Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities), net:
April 1,2019 March 31,2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Opening balance as of April 1 11.64 (14.23)
Tax incomal (expense) dunng the period recognised in profit or loss 8.65 2869
impast on- Account of Ind AS 116 recognised in retained camings 3746 -
Tos incomne/ (expense) during the period recognised in OC! (11.84) 714
Closing balanee as at March 31 5591 2[&
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Financial lisbilities
Note 18: Borrowings
Effective interest Maturity March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
rate (%) Rs. million Rs. million

Short-term borrowings (secured)

Working capital demand loans Refer note below 30 to 180 days 1,179.31 724.92

Cash credits Refer note below Repayable on 21227 518.03

demand
1,391.58 1,242.95

Notes:

a. Working capital demand loans availed by the Company are sub-limit of cash credits, which carries interest rate of 8.40% to 8.80% (March 31, 2019: 8.40% to 8.80%). The loans

generally have a tenure of 30 days to 180 days (March 31, 2019: 30 days to 180 days) from the date of availment. -

b. Cash credits are Indian Rupee loans from banks, which carnes interest rate of 9.00% to 9.05% (March 31, 2019: 9.00% to 9.05%). The loans are repayable on demand along with

interest outstanding.

. Refer note 42(c) for liquidity risk.

Note 19: Trade payables

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Trade payables 627.24 564.95
Bills Acceptance 65.04 -
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 37) 91.76 94.54
T84.04 659.49
Notes:
a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 45 days term (March 31, 2019: 45 days term).
b. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 37.
. The disclosures with regard to Micro, Small and Medium s Development Act is based on the information collected by the 2 based on eng made with the
creditors which have been relied upon by the auditors. As at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 there were no parties registered under the said Act.
Note 20: Security deposits from customers
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Security deposits from 1134 770
11.34 7.70
Note 21: Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Carried at amortised cost:
Payable for capital supplies/ services 20.12 11.10
Payable to employees 54.13 33.77
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 152 257
77.77 47.44
Carried at fair value through OC1
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 21.77
77.77 69.21

Note: Financial liabilities at fair value through OCI reflect the change in fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable

future purchases in LISD,
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Break-up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:

Borrowings (note 18)
Trade payables (note 19)

from (note 20)
Ol.herﬁn.muﬂ liabilities (note 21)

Break-up of financial liabilities carried at fair value:
Other financial liabilities (note 21)

Note 22: Other current liabilities

Advances from customers
Statutory dues (refer note below)
Refund liability for expected sales return

Note 23: R from with ]

a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's from with 5

Sale of produets

Sale of services:
Trademark sublicensing fees

Other operating income:
Commission from franchisee
b) Contract balances
Trade receivables (refer note 11)
Contract lisbilities - Refund liability for expected sales retum (refer note 22)

Note: Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 180 days

)R iling the of recognised in the of profit and loss with contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments:
Expected sales retum
Expected discount
R from with ¢

d) Performance obligations

i) Sale of prod The perfo bligation is sutisfied upon del

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
1,391.58 1,242.95
T84.04 65949
1134 770
T7.37 4744
2,264.73 1,957.58
- 21.77
- 21.77
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
3120 25.16
11.43 29.72
102.30 102.63
14493 157.51
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
4,109.72 399163
23349 213.02
0.36 0.43
ﬂ? 4&06.08
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
1,106.15 1,195 18
102.30 10263
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs, million
451653 436396
(91.02) (91.25)
(8194) (67.63)
434357 4,205,08

y of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 10 180 days from delivery of goods

i) Sale of services/ Olher operating income: The performance obligation is satisfied as and when the services are rendered i ¢, invoices are raised and revenue is recognised on

accrual basis and payment is generally due within 30 days from raising of invoice.

Note 24: Other income

Net gain on di | of y, plant and
Sale of scrap

Forex gain

Gain on reassessment of lease
Miscellaneous income

Naote 25: Finance income

Interest on deposit with banks
Interest on income tax refunds
Interest income - others

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
288 -
075 0.58
. 639
1033 x
440 269
18.36 9.66
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
054 092
198 495
1161 7.59
14,13 13.46
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Note 26: Purchases of traded goods

Purchases of traded goods

Note 27: Increase in inventories of traded goods and right of return assets

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Increase in inventories (a)

Right of return assets at the beginning of the year
Less; Right of return assets at the end of the year
Increase in right of return assets (b)

Increase in inventories of traded goods and right of return assets (a + b)

Note 28: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 35)
Gratiity expense (refer note 35)

Staff welfare expense

Note 29: Other expenses

Packing matenial consumed
Power and fue!
Rent (refer note 6)
- Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
- Rent others
Repuirs and maintenance
-Building
-Plant and machinery
~Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Payments to auditors (refer below for details)
Communication expenses
Freight
Royalty expenses
Adverti and sales | i P
Selling expenses
Property plant and rquipment written off
Warehousing charges
Loss on sale of assets
Foreign exchange fluctuations, net
Outsourced services
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 32)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors:

Payment to auditors as:
Statutory audit fees
Tax audit fees
Other services (certification fees)
Reimbursement of expenses

Note 30: Depreciation and izati ¥

Depreciation of tangible assets (refer note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 5)
Deprecinton of fight of use asset (refer nate 6)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
242272 2,271.90
1,422.72 2,271.90
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
1,230.43 998 64
1,546.03 1,230.43
(315.60) (231.79)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
43.10 -
41.16 43.10
1.94 (43.10)
(313.66) (274.89)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
195.03 15618
809 773
210 2.58
32.73 3035
237.95 196.84
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs, million Rs. million
5121 57.09
19.81 19.85
10.40 241.95
2585 1727
69.99 104 .42
7.68 600
0.45 0.58
11.05 6.06
14.37 325
5374 70.60
3874 53.99
325 426
14.09 13.80
4538 5728
32834 30775
107 08 128.62
159 58 141.02
110 5.04
6298 69.12
- 1 46
676 070
4y 31436
164 162
26 45 21.61
I.-ICI%& 1,647.70
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
250 358
045 044
015 010
015 0.14
3as 4.26
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
1o71 11348
27 68

14117
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Note 31: Finance costs
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Interest on borrowings . 12239 9270
Interest on Income tix 274 1.20
Interest on lease liability (refer note 6) 86.73 -
Bank charges 14.83 16.18
226.69 110.08
Note 32: Disclosure in respect of CSR expenditure /s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 164 162
b) Amount spend during the vear (in cash)
1) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
ii) on purposes other than (i} above 1.64 1.62
¢) Amount unspent during the year - -
Note 33: Earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares used in calculating basic and diluted earning per share is 29,894,318 (March 31, 2019 29,894,318)

Note 34: Significant i i and

The ion of the Company's fi 1al i 10 make judg i and ptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

upu.ue.l. assets, liabilities, the fiscl md the discl of contingent lisbilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes

that require a material adjustment lollxemymgammmlol’amu‘hlbllmu affected in future periods.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estiman inty at the rep dmﬂmhawammﬁumnﬂafmmgammulldjumnm

ﬂ:euﬂpnsmmnfmmmdhlhhuumlhmﬂwm il year, are described below The Company based its ptions and on p ilable when

the Bnancial isting and ptions about future develog h ,mychmgeduemmrmchnngesnrnimmmm

nmngﬂmmqudlbecmroluﬂhef‘ p Such ch are reflected in the ions when they occur,

Sl o — T p——

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash ing unit ds its ble amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its

vahninmmvﬁuinmwudlﬁmitbuedeCmed.T'hecashﬂwumdu'iwdﬂmdlehudgmi‘orﬂnmﬂﬁveyursmddnmindtdermumﬁnguﬁvides

that the Company is not yet itted to or significant future i that will enh the asset's perfe nfﬂwCGUbﬁusmmiThemnhleﬂnounlu

mmwmmmmtmmfauDC?mnddumﬂulthﬁmulh-mﬂmmdmmmemFor polation purp These are most
to intangibles with definite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Defined benefits plans (gratuity benefits)

The: cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are d ined using ial valustions. An actuarial valuation involves making

mmummmwﬁmmmﬁuﬁunmdwupmummm mmmdugmdnumm&mdmmmﬂmmwwlmmw:tymm

to the pl involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly itive to changes in these pti Al ptions are

reviewed at each reporting date

ﬂwmmmmmn:bjmwduﬂsnsdw rate In d ining the appropriate di rate for plans, the management considers the interest rates of government

bonds in i with the ies of the post-empl benefit obligation. The mortality rate 15 based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those

mortality tables tend to change only &t interval in resp 1o demographic changes Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 35

Provision on inventory

The provision on inventory is based on policy, past experience, current trend and future exg jons of these 1als depending on the category of goods

Provision on receivables

The Company has defined policy for provision of receivables which is based on ageing of receivables. The Company reviews the policy ot regular intervals to ensure the
applicability of the same in the changing scenario

R from with
The Company applied the following jud, that ficantly affect the d ination of the amount and timing of from with 5

B JUGE gt

a) Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint
Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a nght of retrn and discounts that give rise 1o varisble consideration. In estimating the vanable consideration, the Company 15
required 1o use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be

entitled

The C 3 ined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in estimating the bl ideration for the sale of goods with nghts of return,
given the large number of customer contracts that have similar 1stics In ing the vari n for the sale of goods with discounts, the Company
determined that using expected value method is appropriate

Before meluding any amount of vanable consideranon in thie ransaction pnce, the Company considers whether the amount of vanable considerstion 15 constrained. The
Company determined that the of vanable consid are not ined based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions In

addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short ime frame
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b) Estimating variable ideration for and di

The Comg i variable iderations to be included in the jon price for the sale of goods with rights of return and discounts

The Comy jeveloped a statistical mode! for fi ing sales returns. The model used the historical return data of each product 10 come up with expected return percentages

These percentages are applied 1o d ine the ex; i value of the variable consideration Any significant changes in expen #s compared to historical retum pattern will

impact the expected return | i 1 by the Comp

The Company applied & statistical model for estimating expected di The model uses the historical purchasing p and di itl of 1o

determine the d di F iges and the exp i value of the variable consideration. Any significant changes in experi a5 pared to historical purchasing

T and di ith of will impact the expected dis: p i d by the C

The Comp pl. its of expected returns and di based on historical trends and effects of lockdown amid COVID-19 and the refund liabilities are adjusted
dingly Esti of expected returns and di are itive o ges in i and the Company's past experience regarding returns and discount

ﬂlﬂﬂmﬂﬂiﬁ may not be representative of customers’ actual returns and discount entitlements in the fumire. As at March 31, 2020, the amount recognised as refund liabilities for
the expected reurns and discounts was Rs. 19437 millions (March 31, 2019 Rs. 178.63 millions).

Lease

The Company assesses whether a ins  lease, at inception of a as per the requi of Ind AS 116, Identification of lease requires significant
Jjudgement

The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term the applicable discount rate.
'.I'heCnmplnydeimt&mrthmaemnlu]lenm-mcdhht:'l:umafll!nImmgelhuwilbaﬂypuiudsmbymopﬁmtuexlmdmulemifiliureusmab!ywmlinlﬂ

be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in
the non-cancellable period of a lease

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rates specific 1o the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar charactenstics.

(Ihis space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note 35: Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans

Th:Compmyprwdes fnrgrnlmty furmployeesmlndunsperﬁ:erymmofGnutyM 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
y. The of gr / termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the

8

mnbm-ofyemufsmm mmmtyphnmnﬁmdedplmmdd:eCmmmymakmmmihmmwmgmmdﬁmdsmm

The Company contributés to the fund based on the latest actuanial valuation report. The Company has contributed to the Insurer Managed Fund (managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India), details of which is available in the table of investment pattern of plan assets. Hence, the Company 1s not exposed to any market nisk

The following tables ise the comg of net benefit exp grised in the St of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the respective plans:
Funded defined benefit plan
a. Net benefit exp recognised through St of Profit and Loss:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Amounts recognised in Employee benefi P of Profit and Loss in respect of gratuity:
Current service cost 1,96 2,39
Interest cost on benefit obligations (net) 0.14 0.19
Net gratuity cost 2.10 2.58
b. Changes in the present value of DBO and fair value of plan assets:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Changes in present value of the obligation:
Openng DBO 16.50 14.50
Current service cost 1.96 239
Interest on DBOs 1.06 1.09
Actuarial (gam)/ loss recognised in OCI (5.47) {0.51)
Benefits paid (0.49) (0.97)
Closing DBO 13.56 16.50
c. Change in fair value of plan assets:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Change in fair value of plan assets:
Openmmg fair value of the plan assets 13.24 10.82
Contnibutions by the employe: 2.00 249
Interest on plan assets 0.91 0.90
Actuarial gamn recognised in OCI 0.02 -
Benefits paid (0.49) 0.97)
15.68 13.24

Closing fair value of the plan assets

d.A gnised in the Balance Sheet:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Present value of the DBO at the end of the year 13.57 16.50
Fair value of plan assets {15.71) (13.24)
Net liability (2.14) 3.26
e. Net liability is bifurcated as follows:
Current (2.14) 1.66
Non-current 3 1.60
(2.14) 3.26

f. The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity (funded) DBOs for the Company are shown below:

[hscount rate
Salary escalation rate

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

6.65%
3.00%

T.75%
10.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senjority, promotion, econonucal challenges due 1o COVID-19 and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market

The overall expected mte of reharn on plan assets is determined hased on the market prices prevailing as on that date, applicable to the penod over which the obligation 15 expected to
he sentled.

""W[l
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g. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 is as follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Sensitivity level:
Discount rate 1%;1 1%d 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on DBO (0.99) 1.13 (1.48) 1.72
Salary escalation rate 1% & 1% d 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on DBO 1.06 (0.93) 1.04 (0.95)
Employees turnover 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on DBO 023 (0.25) (0.14) 0.15

Thesemiﬁvi‘lymlyswabwehuvebumddmﬂmdbuedunnmﬁtmdthnmapomﬂleimpnmmDBOasamuhnf ble changes in key pti
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

h. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs, million
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.56 1.65
From 2 to § years 3.66 3.60
Beyond 5 years 2142 3B.51
Total expected payments 26,64 43.76

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.76 years (March 31, 2019: 12.73 years).

BT bikeis i {bution plans:
Amount recognised as an expense and included in note 28 as "Contribution to provident and other funds":

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Contribution to government provident fund 8.09 7.73
8.09 7.73
Note 36: Commitments
a. Capital and other commitments
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
E: i of e ining to be executed on capital account and 5.52 9.11
not provided for (net of advances):
b. Contingent liabilities not provided for
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Hs. million
Claims against the Company not ack ledged as liability:
Litigation - direct tax matters . 0.23
Litigation - indireet tax matters 457 16,40
Matters relating to duty under dispute (refer note below) 92.28 92.28
Bank guarantees 035 8.40
97.20 117.31

The contingent liabilities, if materialised, shall entirely be bome by the Company, as there is no likely reimbursement from any other party

a) The Company's pending litigations comprise of ¢laims against the Company primanly for ncome tax and indirect tax matters

b) The Company has r 4 all its pending litig; and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent
labilities where applicable, in its financials statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings 1o have a materially adverse effect on its financial
results Refer shove note for detmls on contingent lability

¢) The Company his & process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses At the year end. the Company has reviewed and
ensured that adequate provision as required under any law or sccounting lards for ial ft ble losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books

of account

d) The Company had received demand cum show cause notice under section 28(4) read with section 124 of the Customs Act, 1962 from the Directorate of Revenue
Intelligence ('DRIY, for short payment of duty due to non-inclusion of certain payments to vendors for determining assessable value fur payment of Custom Duty. The
Company 15 confident that it's position will likely be upheld in the appellate process against the above d d However, the Company had deposited s 12.7 mallion
under protest i previous year, refer note 9,

¢} There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 The Company will make provision,
on receiving further clarity on the subject

|‘ BANGALORE

i
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Note 37: Related party disclosure
4. Name of related parties and nature of relationship:
i Joint venture partners
Arvind Fashion Limuted

PVHB.V.
Tommy Hilfiger Europe B V. (till March 28, 2019)

ii. Members of the group of the joint venture partners

Arvind Internet Limited

Arvind Limited

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

Arvind Goodhill Suit Mfg Pvt Ltd.,

Aura Securities Private Limited

Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited

PVH Hong Kong Sourcing Services Limited (amalgamated with PVH Far East Limited in February, 2020)

PVH Far East Limited

PVH Corp.

Tommy Hilfiger Asia Limited
Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limited
Tommy Hilfiger Licensing LLC

iii. CEO & Managing Director

Mr. Shailesh Chaturvedi

. Disclosure in respect of related party transactions:

Key management personnel

Nature of transactions March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million

Sales of goods and materials (net of returns)

Aura Securities Private Limited - (12.07)

Arvind Limited 1.42 048

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 521 -
Cross charge of expenses by Company

Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited 5802 79.76

Arvind Fashion Limited 500 o
Purchase of traded goods

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B V 1.40 433

PVH Corp . 3.61

PVH Far East Limited - 0.06

Arvind Goodhill Suit Mfg Pvt Ltd , 6.07 -
Purchase of Property Plant Equipment

Arvind Limited 084 2,76
Buying office commission

Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limted 1146 15.03

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B V 26.06 21.62

Tommy Hilfiger Licensing LLC 123 0.66

PVH Corp 778 342

PVH Far East Limited 854 -

PVH Hong Kong Sourcing Services Limited 2543 073
Royalty expenses

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B,V 328 34 30775
Management commission

Aura Securities Private Linuted - 214
Other expenses

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B V 0.26 136

Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limited . 0.30

Tommy Hilfiger Asia Limited 1.66 T42

Arvind Goodhill Suit Mfg Pvi Lad . .

Arvind Limited 204 -

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 204 0.04
Salaries, bonus and contribution to provident fund

3593 3673

BANGALORE

560 026.
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March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
¢. Outstanding balances payable/ receivable from related parties
Nature of transactions
Trade payables
Tommy Hilfiger Eurape B.V 77.06 81.27
Tommy Hilfiger { HK) Limited 271 910
Tommy Hilfiger Licensing LLC 080 0,26
Tommy Hilfiger Asia Lirted 1.32 1.15
PVH Corp 133 -
PVH Far Egst Limited 854 0.06
PVH Hong Kong Sourcing Services Limited - 270
Other payables
Arvind Limited - 027
Key management personnel 11.56 10.90
Trade receivables
Arvind Limited 286 -
Arvind Internet Limited - 025
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 10 -
Other receivables
Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited 29.15 21.76
Arvind Fashion Limited 6.84 -
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The snll:s to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length u ling bal at the
d are d and Ily interest free except in case of overdue payments and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided

nr received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related partics. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates

(This space has been intentiopally left hlank)
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Note 38; Segment reporting

Bﬂiﬂnmuﬂ

The Company is p il d it & single b scgment viz., udmgndmnd.ingﬁ dymad; and I ing of other Tommy Hilfiger branded products, which is

Whndbymllluﬁdﬂhmm Accordingly, no separate seg) quired

Geographical segments

The Company’s geographical areas of / 1ses of a) India and b) outside India. The operations outside India for the year are not falling within the criteria of reportable scgment
hucal ing is not applicabl lixﬂlsyur

Note 39: Hedging activities and derivatives

Cash flow hedges
Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange forward d at fair value through OCI are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of forecast purchases in US dollar. These forecast
transactions are highly probable. The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of exp d forcign -y purch and changes in foreign exchange forward rates
The Company is holding the following foreign esch forward
__(Rs. millions)
Less than T Twid Jwé CITE S 12
maonth months months months maonth Total
At March 31, 2020
Foreign exchange forward (highly forecast
purchases
Notional amount (in INR million) 5435 159.16 30808 521.59
Notional amount (in USD million) 0.75 220 423 7%
Awverage forward mte (INR/USD) 7247 7238 292 - - 1270
At March 31, 2019
Foreign exch forward (highly p forecast
purchases)
Notional amount {in INR million) 122.23 167.16 543.74 2271.76 - 1,065 .90
Notional amount (in USD million) 1.75 228 763 3 - 14.85
Average forward mte (INR/USD) 6985 7348 7197 718 - 71.78
The impact of the i on the bal sheet is, as follows:
(Rs. millions).
Notional Carrying amount Line item in the statement of Change in fair value used for measuring
amount financial position ineffectiveness for the period
At March 31, 2020
Foreign exchange forward contracts 521.59 2719 Other financial assets -
At March 31, 2019
Foreign exchange forward contracts 1,065.90 2177 Other current financial hability -
The impact of hedged item on the balance sheet is as follows:
(Rs. millions)
31-Mar-20 March 31, 2019
Bal in cash flow hedge reserve Balance in cash flow hedge reserve
Change in fair  For continuing For hedge no Change in fair Fuor continuing For hedge no
value used for hedges longer required value used for hedges longer required
measuring measuring
ineffectiveness inefTectiveness
Highly probable forecast purchase - 27.19) E - 2177 =
The effect of the cash Mow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other com prehensive income is, as follows:
(Rs. millions)
Total kdgmg Ineffectiveness  Line item in the Cost of hedging ~ Amount reclassified Line item in the
loss i ised in of recognise in OC1  from OCI to profit statement of profit
in OCT prnlﬁt or loss profit or loss or loss or loss
Year ended March 31, 2020
Highly probable forecast purchases (40 70) - NA - (7.57) Other expenses
Year ended March 31, 2019
Highly probable forecast piirchases 21.07 . - - 070 Other expenses

Derivative not designated as hedging instruments
Dunng the previous year, the Company used foreign exchange forward contracts 1o manage some of its foreign currency Tansaction exposure. The foreign exchange forward contracts were not
designated as cash flow hedges and were entered into for penods with forein Xp of the underhvang transactions

Nate 40: Fair values

The carmyving of trade ivables, trade pavables. capital creditors, and cash and cash equivalents are considered (o be same as their fair values. due 1o thear shart-lerm nature

The carmying valuis of loans and security depesits are considered 1o be reasonably same as their fair values. These are clissified as level 2 fur values i the fur value hierrchy due to inclosion of
unobservable mputs ncluding counterparty credit nsk
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Note 41: Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fisir value measurement haerarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.

All assets and habilities for which fair value is or disclosed in the financial are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, descnibed as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurcment as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mput that is significant to the fur value is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and lnbilitics that arc ised in the financ oo & g basis, the Company d incs whether have d b levels in the hi hy by re-
mmmnmthlsedmﬂnmMmMumwwﬁvmmmulm}nhmdmmm

Quantitative discl fair value hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2020:
Company's assets and liabilities which are d at sed cost for which fair value are disclosed at March 31, 2020

(Rs. millions)

Carrying amount as af Fair value
March 31, 2020 Level 1 Level II Level 11
Finuncial assets at amortized cost:
Loans (refer note 7) 162.09 - - 162,09
Financial assets carried at fair value through OCI:
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange forward contracts (refer note ) 2719 2719
Company’s assets and lisbilities which are measured at smorused cost for which fair value are disclosed ot March 31, 2019,
Carrying unt as 8 Fair value
3 March 31,2019 Level I Level I Level 111
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Loans (refer note 7) 134,37 - - 13437
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through OCI:
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange forward contracts (refer note 21) 2m 2177

The fair values of the Company's security deposits are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method using discounting rate that reflects the issuers b ing rate for the
financial assets/ liabilities as at the end of the reporimg period
Note 42: Fis inl risk bjectives and policies
The Company's principal fi | liabil other than derivati 15 b s, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to support the Company's

mmmmsmwnnmmwmmmmrmnmwﬂmqmmmam&wmm

TheCmmfsmmunpmdhmﬂmnﬂ,mdnmkmdhqmdﬂynﬂhu&rmmmmmmmmhfnmulpwﬁmmoﬂh:Cmpm)‘fommeuhmgefnmnd
contract, are entered to hedge foreign are used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading/ speculative instruments. The board of directors reviews and
agress policies for managing each of these risks, wlnd:mmadh:m

a) Market risk
Market nsk is the nisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a fi I will fi beuuwafd:mmmu‘kmpmu Market risk comprises two types of risk. interest rate risk
and currency nsk. Financial mstruments affected by market nsk include borrowings and d The d m the following sections relate 1o the position as

at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019

mmymnmwwmﬁmmummmn\mhm|hcw1mvdm.ufgmnnymdmr,._: i TF P

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss stem i the effect of the assumed changes in respective market nisks, This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilites held a1 March 31,
2020 and March 31, 2019
i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk is the rsk that the far value or future cash fows of a fi | i will i because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s expasure 1o the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates prmanly o the Company’'s debt obhigations with floating mterest rates
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table the itivity 1o a ly possible change in intercst rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other vanables held constant, the Company’s
pﬂhﬁmhnMWhmleﬂWmﬂm

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Rs. million : Rs. million

Basis ponts 0.5% increasc 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Effiect on profit before tax 721 721 (5.52) 552
The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based oo the ly ob ible market envi showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior
years.,
ii) Foreign currency risk
menmymk-ﬂumthﬂuﬁnvdwwﬁmumm&uwwﬂmdemfnmuMM The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exch mtes relates p Iy to the Company’s operating d in foreign

The Company manages its foreign currency nsk by hedging its foreign currency exposure usimg foreign currency forward contracts. As st March 31, 2020, the Company has hedged 63%
(March 31, 2019: 48%) of its payables in foreign currency.

Foreign currency sensitivity
“The following tibles d the ity o a ly possible change in USD and Euro, with all other vaniables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to
wnmmmammmw mCmylewmbwwmwhmwrmuumm
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million
Change in USD 0.5% merease 0 5% decrease 0 5% mcrease 0.5% decrease
Effect on profit before tax (0.38) 038 (0.50) 050
Change in EUR 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Effect on profit before tax (0.08) 0.08 (0.09) 0.09
Unhedged forei e
1. Foreign forward ding to hedge foreign payables/ highly probable fo d payabies:
Murch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
USD (in million) 708 1485
INR equivalent of above (Rs. million) [at closing exchange rates] 540,53 1,020.4%
2. Un-hedged foreign currcnicy exposures as at the Balance Sheet date:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amount in Amount in INR Amount in foreign Amount in INR
foreign currency (Rs. million) currency (million) (Rs. million)

(million)
Trade payables (USD) 1.01 7629 145 100,23
“Trade payables (EUR) 0.20 16.66 023 1807

b Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the nisk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under 8 financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit nisk from s
operating activities (primarily trade receivables)

Trade receivable

Customer credit nisk 1s mnuaudu per the Company’ scﬂablldmdpdacy procedures and control relating o credit nisk mansg Credit limnt are established for all customer based
on itermal rating critera O are reg; itored. The Company has no concentration af credit risk as the customer base 18 widely distnbuted

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company” usubh&hr.dpahn prooedmcundcmﬂdmlmnsm credit sk Credit quality of a is d and individual
credit limits are defined in i with this farf: I d. At March 31, 2020, the Company had 17 customers (March 31, 2019. 21

customers) that owed the Company more than Rs 10 m:lhw each ami accounted for wmnmly 90% (March 31, 2019 93%) of all the recevables outstanding. There were & customers
(March 31, 2019 7 customers) with balances greater than Rs 50 million accounting for just over 69% (March 31, 2019: 67%) of the total amounts recervable

An imip anahsis is perft d at each reg date on an mdividusl basis for major clients. lui:l‘.lum,al.nrgtnnmbn.ln!'mmnrrewviblmlutgmupuﬂIn[ullumog:noussmm
d for wmp wvely. The is based on exch losses historical data. The P o credit risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of

financial assets disclosed m note 11 The Company docs not hold collucrml as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of nsk with respect to trade recervables as low, as its customers
are located in different geographical regions and operate m lnrgely mdependent markets

BANGALORE
£60 025,
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¢} Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obli without bl losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum level of liquidity 1o meet ns cash and collateral requirements.

The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds The Company's obj is a balance b inuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts/ bank
loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it 1 be moderate. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding
and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below izes the ity profile of the C ‘s financial liabilites based on | undi d
(Rs. million)

As at March 31, 2020

Less than 1 year 1 yeario Syears _ More than 5 years Total
Baorrowings (note 18) 1,391.58 - - 1,391.5%
Trade payables (note 19) 784.04 - - T84.04
Security deposits from customers (note 20) 1134 = 11.34
Other financial liabilities {note 21) . Era - - mnn
Lease liability (note 6) 20918 - 20018
As at March 31, 2019

Less than | year 1 yeartoSyears _ More than S years Total
Bormowings (note 18) 1,24285 - - 1,242.95
Trade payables (note 19) 65949 - - 659.49
Security deposits from customers (note 20) 770 - - 7.70
Other financial liabilities (note 21) 6921 - - 6921
Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations anse when a number of 7 are d m similar busa vities in the same shical region, or have economic features that would cause their
ability 1w meet | obliganions to be simil nﬁmdbydmamydﬂnludmmﬂm Concentratinns indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company s performance
to developments affecting a particular industry

Note 43: Capital management
For'lnpmpouufﬂu:(.‘mpunyswmlmmWMMWMwﬂWWWMWﬂ:mWﬁMMM I'h:pmuryobjwuve

of the Company’s capital that #t mamtains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its b and value
The Company its capital mdmdm' w0 1t in light of changes in ditions or its b To in or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend 1o shareholders, retum capital to sharcholders or issue new shares, m&mpuymmmnlnmslmm which is net debt divided by

total capital plus net debt. mwmmmmmmmmmmmwdmmwmmmmml

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs. million Rs. million

Borrowings (note 18) 1,391 58 1,24295
Less: Cash and cash equivalent (note 12) (347 (20.40)
Less: Other current bank balances (note 13) - (1.16)
Net debt 1,388.11 1,221.39
Equity share capital {note 14) 29895 29895
Orther equity (note 15) 1,085 53 1.156.61
Total capital 1,384.48 1,455.56
Capital and net debt 2,772.59 2,676.95
Gearing ratio S0% 6%
huﬂcrwa:ﬁdnwdusmrlllobpm the Compan” s:apn-]mmng:m:m.lmmgstdwr&mss,mwmuuﬂ:ﬂnnuufmnncmlmmumdmdmﬂ:bmwmsslhﬂdtﬁxwml

hes in mecting the financial covenants would permit the bank 10 mmediately call borrowings There have been no hes in the fi | of any
bwruwmglnﬂx current penod
No changes were mude in the objectives, policies or for capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019

Note 44: Transfer pricing

Dunng the vear ended March 31, 2020, the Company has entered mmurmmuammmmlamd partics as defined under section 92BA of Income Tax Act, 1961 ["the Aet™) The
Company, as required under the Act, 15 in the process of getting the transfer pricing eval ducted for 1 1 and Specified Domestic Transactions undertaken during the vear. The
Company is fernt that the & | and Specified Domestic T wath 4/ related arc af anm' s tength, and accordingly docs not expect any matenal financial

adjustment on completion of the transfer pncing culumm
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Note 45: Scheme of amalgamation

In the board tings held on N 4, 2019, the respective Board of Di of Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited (Company) and Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private
Limited ("CK") have approved the scheme of amalgamation between the Company and CK pursuant to provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Companics Act, 2013 whereby it is proposed 1o
amalgamate the Company ito CK. The Scheme is subject o approval of relevant I thorities. Pending such approvals, the Company has not given effect of the scheme in the audited

financial information for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 46: Note on COVID 19 Pandemic
mwdmmlommhmhmmnm It has cansed severe effects on the economy, world over mcluding India due to lockdowns, disruptions in
transportation, supply chain, tmvel plans, social di e and other B

‘The Company s engaged in the business of trading and retailing of readymads 1es and [ memyHﬂﬁwmepmﬁmhuwmums
bmnmmwxmmwammwmcmm The effects such as lower than normal busi ather disrup are expected o have g effect at least
for the next two quarters based on current assessment.

However, the Company has made detailed assessment of the biquidity position for the next one year and of the recoverbility and carrying value of its assets comprising Property, Plant and
qupmmmuwwmmhle.amTnuumennmmmwmmmmmmmmmmwmwmmd

In @ the hility of its asscts meludi and & ies, the Company has considered intemnal and external information up to the date of approval
of these financial includi fe The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic
mwmmunmhmmuﬁmm The mpact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these

Hi the impact of COVID-19 is & continuing process given the uncertuntics associsted with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to closely

monitor any matenal changes to fiture economic conditions

As per our report of even date

For Sorab § Engmmeer & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants A Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
ICAl Firm i ]

r 110417TW
—
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1. Corporate information

Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited ("the Company") is a joint venture (JV) between Arvind
Fashion Limited and PVH BV and Tommy Hilfiger Europe BV (till March 28, 2019). The Company has the
license to use Tommy Hilfiger trademarks in connection with the manufacture, import, distribution, promotion,
advertising and sale of products in India. The Company is engaged in marketing and wholesale trading activity
of Tommy Hilfiger brand apparels, accessories and other products in India. Further, the Company has also
sublicensed its rights to third parties for sale of other Tommy Hilfiger licensed products.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had received approval from the Department of Industrial
Policy and Promotion (DIPP) for Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) up to 50% for single brand retail trading of
Tommy Hilfiger branded products. Basis which, the Company has started retail activity of Tommy Hilfiger
brand apparels, accessories and other products in India from August 22, 2016.

The financial statements were approved by Board of Directors in the meeting held on May 21, 2020.
2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(*Ind AS”) as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule III to the Companies Act. 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule III), as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments), which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest millions (INR 000,000),
except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements:

i) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle:

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

* ILisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
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The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

ii) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s at the functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or on translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income [OCI] or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

iii) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

I'he Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

* Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
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* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purpose in these financial information is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transaction that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 and measurement that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS

36.

iv) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements, except for the agency services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in note 34.

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 180

days upon delivery.
Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of goods provide customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts
give rise to variable consideration.

i. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The
Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The
requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned. instead of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A
right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognised for the
right to recover products from a customer.

il. Discounts

Discounts are offset against amounts payvable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration
for the expected future discounts. the Company applies the expected value method. The selected
method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of
volume thresholds contained in the contract.
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b)

d)

€)

Interest

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

License fee/ Commission

Revenue from license fee and commission is recognized as per contractual terms, on an accrual basis.

Contract balances
i. Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

ii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section (xiv) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement,

iii. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return
i. Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The
Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

ii. Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return
to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change
in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. Refer to above accounting policy on
variable consideration.
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v) Income tax
a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In assessing the probability the Company considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity. which will result in
taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they
expire.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

vi) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. if any. The cost includes the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met
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and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the recognition criteria is met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

The Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life
that is materially different from that of the remaining life.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at
based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated over their
useful lives; the remaining assets are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the
following rates to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

i Useful lives estimated by Useful life as per Schedule II (in
Assets Description .
management (in years) years)

Plant and equipment 15 15

Computers and servers

-Computers 3 3

-Servers 6 6

Vehicle 4 8

Office equipment 3 5

Furniture and fixtures 8 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the useful life of 8 years or over the period of the lease, whichever
is lower.

Prorated depreciation is provided on all assets purchased or sold during the year.

Where the estimated useful lives are different from lives prescribed under Schedule 1. management has
estimated these useful lives after taking into consideration technical assessment, prior asset usage experience and
the risk of technology obsolescence. The management believes that the estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipments are reviewed at
ecach financial year end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

vii) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

I'he useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another

asset,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

when the asset is derecognised.

The intangible asset comprising Trademark license fee is amortised over a term of 15 years and software
licenses are amortised over the term of 3 - 5 years.

viii) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs
are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

ix) Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
assel.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (ROU) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
ol impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases. the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Gienerating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

I'he lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or. if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
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corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it
will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

x) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of goods is ascertained under actual landed
cost and is determined by specific identification of the individual cost of inventory.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determines on weighted average cost basis.

Obsolete and defective inventory are duly provided on the basis of management estimates.

xi) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units (CGU)
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally covers a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows afier the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations. including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for previously revalued property, plant and equipment, with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus,

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as 1o whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount. nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of
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Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

xii) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,

xiii) Retirement and other employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme in respect of which
the Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. The Company contributes to a gratuity fund
maintained by an independent insurance company.

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
made at the end of each financial year.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods. 2
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment. and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

* Net interest expense or income

¢) Leave encashment/ compensated absence
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Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit, The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The
Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, as it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

xiv) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the
accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories:
* Debt instruments at amortised cost

* Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
* Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (IF'VTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost;

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and
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e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to note 11.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI:

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset. the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Company could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.. loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115/ Ind As 18.

e Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

» Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right

from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However. in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

e (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c.. as an integral part of the measurement of those

assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount;

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance
sheet, i.e. as a liability:
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b)

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company prepares financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings:

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer
note 18.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xv) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
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The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or
loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

(i) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment

(ii) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

(iii) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s
fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in
finance costs. Refer note 39 for more details.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs,

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked. or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

xvi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.
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xvii) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xviii) Measurement of profit before interest, depreciation/ amortization and tax (PBIDT)

As per Ind AS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”, the Company has elected to present PBIDT as a separate
line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures PBDIT on the basis of
profit/loss from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include
depreciation/amortisation expenses, finance costs and tax expenses.

xix) Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed by the management at each balance sheet date.

xx) Segment reporting

Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and

serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating
divisions of the Company operate.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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